Christ Episcopal Church, Ottawa, Illinois History, Architecture and Stained Glass Windows
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According to the parish register, Christ Episcopal Church was first established in April 1838, with services presided over by Ottawa newcomer, The Rev. Samuel Chase.   The new parish was incorporated into the Diocese of Illinois.  Services were held at various locations, first in the old courthouse and then a warehouse on the southeast corner of the square.  Later, services were held in a room over a store and in private residences. The Rev. Chase left in 1839 and the parish was discontinued until 1845, when it was re-established with Rev. Charles Kelly as rector.  In 1849 the first church was built on Clinton Street, where the First National Bank parking lot is presently located.  In 1852, the rectorship was assumed by Rev. Charles Clarke, who also served the churches at Farm Ridge, Peru and Morris for the first two years of his tenure. In 1855, the Clinton Street church was enlarged.  In 1866, the first church building was showing signs of decay, so land was purchased at the northeast corner of the square.  At this time, there were 102 communicants  and the Rev. Thomas Benedict was rector.  In 1870, bids were let for the construction of the new church, which was awarded to Colwell Clark & Company of Ottawa, for $11,150.50.  The building was first used in December of 1871 and the interior was deemed finished in January, 1872.  (Carpeting and some other items were delayed by the Chicago fire of 1871.)  This building is still in use today.

The building is of gothic style and built of Joliet limestone.  The interior was completely remodeled in 1925 and in 1930, with the addition of the present altar and reredos (the decorative wooden backdrop behind the altar) the building acquired the "look" it has today.  The distinctive architectural features of our church include many stained glass windows representing a variety of periods, the altar & reredos, and the fine pipe organ.
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The altar is “statuary buff” Indiana limestone and weighs over three and one-half tons.  It is decorated with a combination of the Greek letters Chi Rho and Alpha and Omega in the front center and with five crosses on the top, representing the five wounds of Christ.  The reredos is designed to highlight the cross and tabernacle.  It is hand carved and adorned with polychrome designs and symbols.  The reredos and tabernacle are Appalachian Oak and the design and carving were done by Alois Lang, a well known artist of his time.  The color was done by Mrs. Jean J. Myall of Evanston, Illinois.  The altar and reredos were dedicated on June 29, 1930.

The organ is a two manual, Austin organ presented to the church in 1923.  Austin organs are unusual because it is possible to walk into the “air chest” in order to service the organ while it is playing.  The organ is serviced regularly and has had at least three major overhauls, one in 1986-86 and another in 1996, when the original 12 ranks and 762 "speaking" pipes were increased to 16 ranks and over 1000 pipes.  Another major overhaul was completed in July 2007.  This work was deemed crucial because the Austin organ company is going out of business and in the future, replacement parts may become extremely difficult to obtain. The old, outdated tubes, contacts and pistons were replaced. The new manuals have all solid state parts and the entire controller was replaced.   We also had manuals that have many keys without ivories, so those were also repaired.   In the future, we could add computer technology which would allow us to record songs and still have the full, rich tones of the genuine pipe organ.

Christ Church windows reflect our members' faith and appreciation of beauty over our 135 years in this building.  They certainly are one of its most beautiful and impressive features.  The earliest windows are original with the building and the newest ones are from the 1950s.  Some are true stained glass, some are stenciled glass and some are painted glass.   Please see below for individual photos and descriptions of the windows.
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above the altar

in memory of
Mr. William Osman
1819-1909

Senior Warden from
1858 to 1909.

The center section was
installed sometime prior
to 1923 and the side
panels were installed
sometime after 1938.

51 years as Senior Warden????
He DESERVED this window in his memory!



   [image: image3.jpg]Resurrection window
(Wallace window)

This is the best known and most
publicized window at Christ
Church. The widow of General
William H.L. Wallace gave the
window to the church in his
memory after his death at the
Civil War battle of Shiloh. His
life and final battle are depicted
in the lower portion of the
window. The window itself is an
example of painting on glass, as
though it were canvas. The
window was created by the
Royal Artist at Dresden and was
purchased for approximately
$1000 in 1872. There are older,
and many feel more beautiful
windows in the church, but this
window aftracts attention and
visitors because of it's unique
history.
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to right (south) of the altar

In memory of
Mr. & Mrs. John Nash

Mr. Nash: 1824 -1913
Mrs. Nash: 1826 -1917
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to left (north) of altar

In memory of
Dr. & Mrs. Robert McArthur
Dr. McArthur:  1825-1886
Mrs. McArthur: 1830 - 1886
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St. Cecelia Guild Window

1st window in south aisle
nearest the altar

In memory of
Edith Raymond Wilson
1878-1908
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2nd in south aisle

In memory of
Mrs. Frances Higby Power
1804-1854

The window was installed sometime
prior to 1916.
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"Queen of Heaven"
(Third in south aisle)
In memory of

Mrs. Sadie Swift Marsland
1848-1871
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4th in south aisle

In memory of

Georgia Gilman Cook
1846-1931

and

Florence Cook Palmer
1875 - 1953
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July 28, 1959.

(5th in side aisle)
1887-

This window, the newest in
the church, was dedicated on

St. Anna win
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2nd in north aisle

In memory of
Mrs. Mabel Cushman Hitt
1856-1926






[image: image12.jpg]The windows on the west end of the church are probably the
oldest of the windows. The have fleur-de-lis and mystic rose
patterns, in addition to small panels containing particular
symbols: the crossed keys (the symbol of St Peter), the open
Bible, the lamb with a victory banner and the Bishop's miter
These windows are "stenciled glass” using basic pigments,
fired onto the glass at varying temperatures. This was a

standard technique following the Civil War, because of a
shortage of stained glass for twenty years or so after the war
The smallrosettes in the upper potion of the smaller
windows at the rear of the church were probably imported, with
the rest of the window made here. This was standard
practice of the time, due to the high cost of even small pieces
of fine imported stained glass





There are also other windows, not visible from inside the church.  These windows are in the northeast corner of the church, behind the organ and in the wall of the sacristy.  The window hidden behind the organ is actually a rose window.  Unfortunately, the windows can not be viewed from outside the church either, because of the protective coverings in place for energy conservation.

